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Acronyms
DFID

Department for International Development

DFS

Digital Financial Services

ES

Environmental and Social

KRN

Karandaaz Pakistan

MFBs

Microfinance Banks

MFPs

Microfinance Providers

NBMFIs

Non-Bank Microfinance Institutions

PMIC

Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited

PMN

Pakistan Microfinance Network

PPAF

Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund

SBP

State Bank of Pakistan

SDGs

Sustainable Development Goals

SECP

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
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About PMIC
Established in October 2016, PMIC is a vital player in the financial services eco-system of Pakistan. Its
formation marks a key milestone of the National Financial Inclusion Strategy, whereby various development
partners joined hands to establish a company which could actively contribute towards a robust financial
system leading to provision of financial services at the bottom of the pyramid.
With focus on improving employment and livelihood opportunities for marginalized segments in the
country especially women and youth, PMIC is introducing need-based products, to graduate them out of
abject poverty. With outreach throughout the country, PMIC has already impacted the lives of 413,000
households. PMIC actively contributes towards formation of policies and strategies to enhance financial
inclusion in the country.

Our work is guided by the
following thematic areas:
Women & Youth
Rural
Digital Pathways
Employment Generation

Brand Statement

Passion
for Progress
03
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A Pakistani society where
the underserved are empowered

Provide financial and institutional
services to strengthen and scale-up
provision of sustainable and
responsible access to finance to
individuals, micro entrepreneurs and
micro enterprises in Pakistan to
enhance employment and income
opportunity for economically poor
and underserved citizens and
improve the lives of the poor.
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Strategic Objectives
Create a financially sustainable wholesale organization
Provide innovative and customized support to PMIC investees; develop
capacity to access commercial credit markets
Ensure compliance with ES Guidelines in the organization
Build a robust financial ecosystem for the growth of sustainable
microfinance in Pakistan
Build a strong, professional and innovative organization

Annual Report 2017

Core Values

01
Transparency
Professionalism

02
03

Business
Ethics

06

Value
Addition &
Innovation

Sustainability

05

06

04
Responsible
Finance
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Shareholder’s Profile
PMIC has been formed as a result of partnership between three institutions, PPAF, DFID through KRN and
KfW. These three entities have pooled in financial resources and intellectual capital in the formation of PMIC.
The sponsoring institutions bring clarity of purpose and a commitment to PMIC’s mission which envisages
a Pakistani society where the underserved are empowered. In addition to capital contribution from the
sponsors, PMIC also has subordinate loans available from them, which reflects the sponsors’ commitment
to the institution’s mission.

PPAF - established in 2000, by the Government of Pakistan as an autonomous not-for-profit organization.
PPAF enjoyed facilitation and support from the Government of Pakistan, The World Bank, International
Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD), KfW and other statutory and corporate donors. PPAF had been
the largest source of wholesale funds for community-driven development in the country. The core
operating units of PPAF deliver a range of development interventions at the grassroots/community level
through a network of more than 100 Partner Organizations across the country.

KRN - Pakistan, a not-for-profit company (registered under Section 42), established in August 2014. KRN
promotes access to finance for small businesses through a commercially directed investment platform, and
financial inclusion for individuals by employing technology enabled digital solutions. The Company has
financial and institutional support from leading international development finance institutions; principally
the United Kingdom Department for International Development (UKAid) and the Bill & Melinda Gates
Foundation.

KfW - a German government owned development bank. KfW has been facilitating the German Federal
Government to achieve its goals in development policy and international development cooperation for
more than 50 years. It is both an experienced bank and a development institution with financing expertise,
expert knowledge of development policy and many years of national and international experience. On
behalf of the Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), it finances and supports
programs and projects that mainly help countries fight poverty, maintain peace, and protect both the
environment and the climate.

SHAREHOLDERS
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Board of Directors
Zubyr Soomro*

Chairman of Board

Qazi Azmat Isa
Member; Chief Executive Officer,
PPAF

Dr. Tariq Hassan
Member; Attorney

Christiane Schmidt

Member; Senior Project Manager,
Infrastructure & Financial Sector,
KfW

Navid Goraya

Member; Chief Investment Officer,
KRN

Zafar Hassan
Member; Additional Finance
Secretary, Finance Division,
Government of Pakistan

Yasir Ashfaq

Chief Executive Officer,
PMIC

*resigned with effect from April 27, 2018
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Management Team

Yasir Ashfaq

Fahad Asad

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Rizwan Sheikh

Muhammad
Rashid Imran

Head of Corporate
Finance & Investment
Banking

Chief Risk Officer

Asghar Memon

Saqib Siddiqui

Head of Portfolio
Management

Head of Sector
Development

Sobia Maqbool

Neelum Aamir

Head of Strategy &
Research

Head of Internal Audit

Syeda Ambreen
Zehra Taqvi

Umer Sami Hayat
Company Secretary

Head of Human Resources
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Key Timelines PMIC Operations

April

August
October 2016

October
2017

June
2017

March
2017

June 2016
2016

2016

Signing of Shareholders’ Agreement by PPAF, KRN & KfW - April 2016
Permission from SECP to establish PMIC - June 2016
Incorporation as an Investment Finance Company - August 2016
Commencement of PMIC Operations - October 2016
Initiation of lending operations - March 2017
Approval of PMIC Business Plan 2020 - June 2017
Entity ratings of “AA/A1+” with a Stable Outlook assigned by
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency - October 2017
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Client Success Stories
Naseem Bibi
For Naseem Bibi, a young widow with the responsibility of
raising 3 daughters and 2 sons on her own — microfinance
proved to be a ray of light in her otherwise dark and gloomy
life marred by financial troubles. It was in March 2017 when
she came across the microfinance loans provided by a PMIC
funded MFI, Rural Community Development Programs
(RCDP) operating in her area of residence — Mandi Faizabad.
She took up a microfinance loan and in collaboration with
her son setup a small automotive spare parts manufacturing
unit wherein they have also employed one other person to
help with the manufacturing in order to meet the demand
for spare parts.
Naseem Bibi’s monthly income has tripled and the greatest
achievement for her is that she can now send her children to
an English medium school in the quest to gain quality
education. Naseem Bibi now has bigger goals. In her next
loan cycle, she intends to graduate to the larger loans
provided by RCDP to purchase an electric-powered and
eco-friendly machine with greater production capacity and
a generator, with the goal to employ at least 5 more persons.
With her experience and commitment, and the necessary
financial resources made available through microfinance,
she is definitely on track to realizing her dream.

Kousar Bibi
Kousar Bibi’s story is a great example of the success of
microfinance and the impact that access to finance can
create. She lives in Balokassar, a village in district Chakwal.
The village has no regular supply of water or energy. Kousar
Bibi and her family had meagre resources and lived in
abject poverty till a PMIC funded MFI, Micro-Options
offered her a loan. She bought a buffalo and with savings
she now has a water well installed in her home. With the
second loan from Micro-Options she installed a bio-gas
plant. This not only helped her save cost of fuel wood but
the plant is also eco-friendly.
With the well in her house and the bio-gas plant, Kousar
Bibi now has enough time to sew clothes- which also
supplements her household income. Her income has
increased by four times since joining the microfinance
program of Micro Options Support Program. This has
translated into improved quality of life for Kousar Bibi and
her family while also generating additional employment.

11

Our People & Our Culture
PMIC is focused on creating a positive workplace, where we
celebrate diversity, positively engage with each other and the
environment in which we operate, we foster innovation, and
celebrate the vision towards which we are working together as
a team everyday.
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Giving back to the country - PMIC Engages in Environment
Protection Activities on Pakistan’s National Days
'Clean and Hike Activity - 23rd March Celebrations'
To mark Pakistan Day Celebrations, PMIC staff engaged in a "Clean and Hike - Trail 3” activity in Islamabad.
PMIC staff collected garbage on the trail with the aim to engage in community service to protect the
environment. The staff collected garbage along 5kms of the trail. On this occasion, PMIC staff resolved to
give back to the country and create social impact by promoting environment-friendly activities that
contribute towards nature conservation for a better tomorrow.

Tree Plantation Activity to celebrate
70 years of Pakistan's Independence
To celebrate 70 years of Pakistan’s Independence, PMIC
conducted a tree plantation activity at the Japanese
Park, Islamabad. The activity reinforced PMIC’s pledge
for a cleaner, greener and environment friendly
Pakistan. All PMIC staff took part in the activity and in
line with the Capital Development Authority’s
Environmental Guidelines, the staff planted orchid
(‘kachnar’), jambul (‘jamun’) and guava trees.

13
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PMIC-PMN Conference

Two-day Microfinance Conference on Innovation and Growth was held in Islamabad on December 4-5,
2017. The conference was jointly hosted by PMIC and PMN. The conference provided policy makers,
development agencies, microfinance professionals, practitioners, regulators and other stakeholders with
a platform to engage in dialogue on the emerging trends in the microfinance sector and recent
innovations to meet the evolving needs of microfinance clients. PMIC also commemorated successful
completion of one year of lending operations while presenting the audience with an insight into its
transition from a social fund to a double bottom line institution and engaging in discussion on PMIC’s
strategy and future plans to steer growth and innovation in the sector.

14
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Celebrating Diversity on
International Women’s Day
International

Women’s Day

Gender diversity is a key pillar of PMIC’s team building philosophy. At year-end, female team members
represented around 34% of employee base. PMIC is willing to go the extra mile to encourage greater
female participation in the workforce. Our various policies are designed to ensure that our employees are
able to maintain work-life balance.

15
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CEO’s Message
2017 was the first full year of operations of PMIC and yet as I look back and reflect on where we started our
journey from, PMIC has come a long way. Within the first year, we developed our complete policy
framework, laid down the strategic blueprint for the organization, and set out passionately to implement it.
In just 10 months, we built a loan book of PKR 11.5 billion; and we initiated pilots for 6 microfinance plus
projects aimed at meeting the needs of end clients. We worked with our borrowing institutions to build their
institutional capacity and entered into collaborations with 10 institutions to bring together various players to
develop the eco-system for greater financial inclusion.
While it has been a year full of achievements, we recognize that it’s a long road towards achieving the vision
that we have set out for ourselves. We also understand that there is high level of expectations from PMIC in
creating new pathways that will bring down the barriers in realizing a more inclusive and equitable Pakistani
society.
Our focus on financial services as a means towards achieving our vision is underpinned by the emphasis
placed on access to finance under the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). It is estimated that between
USD 5-7 trillion are required to meet the targets set under various SDGs; and microfinance can play a critical
role in providing these funds.
We at PMIC are cognizant that improved economic well-being of people living at the base of the pyramid
would not only require that a wide range of inclusive financial services are provided at scale; but we are
equally committed to ensuring substantial and sustained use of high quality financial services. Our focus on
research will continue to guide the models we adopt and ensure continuous improvement in the same, to
achieve our goals.
We believe that if the microfinance sector is to reach out to 10 million borrowers by 2020, new products will
need to be developed to address the diverse needs of end clients. We are ready to invest in the eco-system
to ensure that comprehensive support systems are created for expanding financial services. We are looking
to enter into new partnerships, both with specialized institutions having expertise to aid the provision of
technical solutions for our product verticals and impact investors, looking to invest in Pakistan. We are also
developing tools to measure the impact of our work in line with the agenda set out by our shareholders, in
terms of job creation, and reaching out to women, youth and the rural communities. And we understand
that all of this will function in the backdrop of norms and rules that are conducive to the expansion of
financial services.
I would like to conclude by extending gratitude to my team at PMIC who worked zealously to set up the
organization and remain wholeheartedly committed to our strategic objectives. I would also like to take this
opportunity to thank our borrowing institutions, Board of Directors, PPAF, KRN, DFID, KfW, SBP, SECP, PMN
and the larger network of stakeholders for their continued support to PMIC.

Yasir Ashfaq
Chief Executive Officer
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Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors of Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited (PMIC) is pleased to present
the annual audited financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2017.

Economic Review
During FY2016-17, Pakistan’s economy continued on its path to recovery amidst new challenges. Economic
growth was recorded at 5.28%, the highest in a decade, attributable to turn around in the agriculture sector
and better-than-expected performance in the services sector. Major infrastructural projects under the
China-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) are expected to provide positive impetus to the economy, along
with sustained domestic demand, foreign investments and overall improvement in the security situation.
In the backdrop of this growth, rising international oil prices together with currency devaluation may create
inflationary trends in the economy. The pressure on current account deficit has continued due to high level
of imports while foreign exchange reserves of the country have witnessed a gradual decline in recent
periods, raising concerns as regards the external solvency position. 2018 is election year and political
uncertainty may have a detrimental effect on the country’s growth prospects.
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), in a major reversal of the monetary policy, has increased the interest rate
(policy rate) upwards by 25bps to 6% after maintaining status quo for 20 months. SBP, through its policy
action, has tried to address inflation and external account concerns arising out of recent currency
devaluation, increase in international oil prices, rising global interest rates and burgeoning aggregate
demand pressures. Further increase in the policy rate could be expected in the year 2018. While as such the
banking sector remains sound with stable funding and capital levels, there have been certain undesirable
developments in recent times in terms of compliance issues and regulatory actions at international level.

Microfinance sector update
The microfinance sector recorded impressive
growth in the outgoing year; more than a million
new individuals were brought under the fold of
micro-credit. The aggregate micro-credit portfolio
stood at Rs. 183 billion at the end of 3Q 2017, spread
over 5.5 million borrowers. Over the years, loan
portfolio characteristics have witnessed changes in
line with growth by Microfinance Banks (MFBs),
which are more urban centric; active borrowers in
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urban centers now represent 54% of the total. About 53% of the borrowers are female vis-à-vis 55% at
end-2016. In terms of utilization, almost 44% of borrowers belong to the agriculture/livestock sector,
reflecting the nature of activity in rural markets.
Average loan size has only increased marginally, as new-to-microfinance clients, which are generally given
smaller loans continue to be added in large quantum. There is however demand for much larger loans by
clients. In order to facilitate greater access to credit along the spectrum of varying sizes of enterprises, SBP
has recently enhanced the loan size limit to Rs. 1 million for microenterprises; at end Sept’17, the average
outstanding loan size for MFBs was reported at Rs. 50,000. Microenterprise loans represented just 10% of
total micro-credit, including lending by NBMFIs. The utilization of enhanced loan limit by SBP can
contribute towards both employment generation and revenue enhancement for microenterprises.

Operational and Financial Review
The financial results of PMIC are as follows:
2017
(Rupees)

Aug – Dec 2016
(Rupees)

Income

700,869,204

17,006,268

Finance cost

(148,184,213)

(2,800)

552,684,991

17,003,468

Administrative expenses

(256,128,541)

(100,402,617)

Profit / (loss) before taxation

185,309,302

(66,462,458)

Earning per share

25.78

(204.96)

2017 was the first full year of operations for PMIC. The company has transitioned successfully from the
startup phase towards full scale business operations.
Earlier in the year, the focus was on developing policies, procedures and infrastructure. Human resource was
also added during this period. The company started its microfinance lending /financing operations towards
the end of first quarter 2017 and was able to grow its financing portfolio to PKR 11.3 billion by year end, a
significant feat in a relatively short span.
PMIC has a strong equity base of PKR 5.8 billion; in order to support the growth of microfinance sector, the
company will raise funds from various sources as appropriate. During the year, PMIC has received PKR 6.7
billion from Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (PPAF) as subordinate loan. Moreover, PKR 1.725 billion has
been secured from Karandaaz Pakistan as subordinate loan subsequent to year end. Further sub-ordinate
loan is expected during the year 2018. The provision of sub-ordinated loan signifies the sponsors’
commitment towards PMIC’s mission in addition to significantly enhancing the balance sheet strength of
the company.
The company managed to deliver impressive financial results despite this being its first full year of
operations. For the year ended December 31, 2017, PMIC has earned revenue of PKR 701 million and a profit
before tax of PKR 185 million. This has effectively absorbed prior year’s accumulated losses of PKR 67 million
(mainly relating to pre-incorporation expenses). This achievement was made possible by a combination of
sound business strategy and efficient operations.
PMIC remains committed to investing in people, technology and bringing efficiencies in its work processes.
Administrative expenses remained well within budget and were recorded at PKR 256 million for the year
2017. A sizeable portion of admin expenses pertains to one-off expenditures on capacity building, strategy
formulation and related consultancies.
19
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The credit supply from PMIC to partner financial institutions was utilized to serve over 413,000 microfinance
clients, of which 86% are women. Moreover, 55% of the portfolio at year-end was outstanding in rural areas.
The financing is expected to generate development outcomes in line with PMIC’s vision to enhance
employment and income generating opportunities with almost 46% of the portfolio extended for
enterprise/commerce and trading purposes; exposure in agriculture and livestock aggregated 33% at
year-end. PMIC will continue to focus lending in segments that generate jobs, increase revenues of small
and micro enterprises, stimulate digital finance and expand access to formal finance for the underserved
and marginalized but enterprising segments, especially women.
PMIC appreciates the sizeable and varying funding requirements of the microfinance sector and is
committed to provide a steady stream of innovative financial solutions tailored to the specific needs of its
valued micro finance partners. Our fund and non-fund based offering for our clients include syndicated
Loans and debt capital markets instruments, structured finance, advisory services and complementary
products /services such as partial or first loss credit guarantees, short term loans, standby credit facilities, etc.
that may be bundled with other investment banking products.
As an apex institution and sector developer, the overarching objective of all PMIC interventions is to bring
sustainable improvement in the lives of the underserved segments of the population. PMIC’s strategy is
holistic, targeting four main thematic areas including need-based microfinance plus products for women
and youth, access to finance in the rural underserved areas, adoption of digital pathways and employment
generation. In 2017, PMIC launched several innovative and beneficiary centric initiatives; these include
agriculture value chain for smallholder farmers, crop and livestock micro-insurance products, graduating
clients towards SME through enterprise development, graduating clients out of poverty, and digitization of
microfinance operations. PMIC is focused on creating meaningful impact through all these initiatives and
plans to document results to reach out to various development agencies, and corporates to upscale the
same.
PMIC understands that sound risk management is a prerequisite to achieving business objectives
successfully and accordingly it plays an integral part in the Company’s overall policies. To ensure that an
effective risk management is implemented in the Company, the Board of Directors and senior
management are actively involved in the formulation of policies, procedures and limits. As part of its triple
bottom line objective, the management has also placed adequate focus on the Environmental and Social
Risks associated with PMIC and its borrowers; policy framework in this regard is in the approval process.
Refinements were continuously undertaken in the overall risk governance framework, based on the guiding
principles established by the board of directors.

Management Committees
To implement prudent practices, foster joint decision making and bring into play participation from all
areas, the following Management Committees functioned actively during the year:
Management Committee (MANCOM)
Management Risk Committee (MRC)
Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO)

Outlook
PMIC has quickly established itself as a key player in the microfinance sector in a relatively short span of
time. With sound systems in place and the business wheel obtaining its true momentum, the company will
continue building its loan book during 2018 by deepening relationships with its existing borrowers in
addition to developing new ones. Our deep-rooted understanding of the needs of the end beneficiaries will
facilitate us in up-scaling the product pilot initiatives rolled out in 2017 in addition to introducing more
need-based products, such as microfinance for education and financing for solar home solutions.
We also recognize our role in strengthening the eco-system and we will pursue partnerships with other
actors in this universe, such as the Pakistan Microfinance Network, in such areas as digital platforms to
prepare the sector for the next phase of growth.
20
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Our interventions will continue to be driven by our vision to ensure greater provision of sustainable and
responsible access to finance and create positive impact in the lives of those living at the bottom of the
pyramid.

Credit Rating
PMIC has been assigned long-term rating of “AA” and short-term rating of “A-1+” by The Pakistan Credit Rating
Company Limited.
The ratings are a testimony of the company’s stand-alone financial strength, augmented by strong
shareholders’ support.

The shareholding as at December 31, 2017 is as follows;
Sr #

SHAREHOLDERS

SHARES

PERCENTAGE

1

Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund

2,883,256

49.00%

2

Karandaaz (Pakistan)

2,224,243

37.80%

3

KfW

776,719

13.20%

4

Directors

4

0.00%

5,884,222

100.00%

Total

Auditors
The present Auditors, M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
recommended the appointment of M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the
Company for the year ending December 31, 2018.

Acknowledgement
The Board of Directors would like to take this opportunity to express their gratitude to the shareholders, SECP
and SBP, PMN, our clients and hundreds of thousands of microfinance clients for their support and trust.
Further, with effect from August 03, 2017, Mr. Yasir Ashfaq was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in place of Mr. Shahid Mustafa. The Board would like to thank Mr. Shahid Mustafa for his efforts and
contribution in setting up PMIC.
We would also like to acknowledge the effort and contribution of all the employees which have resulted in a
fruitful year for the company.
For & on behalf of the board

-sd-

-sd-

Yasir Ashfaq
CEO
Date: March 13, 2018
Place: Islamabad

Navid Goraya
Director
Date: March 13, 2018
Place: Islamabad
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PMIC Strategy

Integrated Intervention Approach
Instead of being a market actor that steps in to just fill in the funding gap, PMIC is structured
to facilitate any initiative that enhances financial inclusion in the country!
Funding & Investment Structures for MFPs
Microfinance Plus Initiatives
Building Eco System

PMIC’s engagements and interventions are targeted towards:

Financial
Services Providers

Networks

Clients

Local and
International Fund
Providers

Regulators

Policymakers

23
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Our Impact
PMIC’s interventions are focused to create impact over the following dimensions in the long term. We are
developing the necessary tools to measure our impact and share with our valued stakeholders.
Changes in capacity, practices, institutional
practices / processes and structures of borrowing institutions

Borrowing institutions adapt and broaden their
services menu offered to poor people

PMIC

Improved access to appropriate financial services
translating into higher economic benefits for poor
and marginalized groups, in Pakistan

Interventions by borrowing institutions lead
to improved quality of lives of the poor

Fueling the Sector’s Growth
PMIC commenced its lending operations in March 2017 and rapidly built up a portfolio of PKR 11.5 billion by
year-end 2017. With this, PMIC was able to carve out a market share of almost 6% for itself in the first year of
operations.

PKR 11.5b

PKR 7.7b

PKR 4.2b

PKR 1.4b
PKR 0
Dec-16

Mar-17

Jun-17

Sept-17

Dec-17

In addition to the above, PMIC is also providing monitoring services to PPAF in respect of the institution’s
microfinance portfolio.
Funding needs of the sector participants have evolved in line with growth and PIMC is geared to respond to
those needs with innovative fund and non-fund based solutions. Moreover, PMIC is distinctly positioned to
crowd-in resources from both on-shore and off-shore lenders/investors for the sector’s benefit!
24
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Wholesale Lending
Debt
Equity
Quasi-equity / subordinate debt

Advisory
Currency & Interest Rate Hedging advisory
Advisory under Digital Finance ambit
Capital Raising

Microfinance Portfolio Characteristics
Working with our borrowing institutions, PMIC is able to extend the impact of its work to a large number of
clients. PMIC has been able to develop partnerships with almost all NBMFIs, with transactions in pipeline
with the remaining NBMFIs and MFBs.

Number of Clients - 413,000

Number of borrowing institutions
(NBMFIs and MFBs) - 16
Women Empowerment
PMIC recognizes that microfinance services lead to women’s empowerment by positively influencing their
decision-making power and enhancing their socio-economic status. PMIC’s current portfolio mix features
greater women representation, given the predominant NBMFI clientele of the company. Over the long
term, although our focus would remain on women, PMIC envisages to have a balanced gender mix in its
lending portfolio with equal opportunities for male and female clients

14%

clients are men

86%

of clients
financed
by PMIC's
borrowing
institutions
are women

25

Annual Report 2017

Geographic Mix
Pursuant to its overarching objective to create equitable access to financial services, PMIC aims to have at
least 50% of its portfolio deployed in rural communities over the long term. PMIC also plans to create
incentive mechanisms to further the provision of financial services in marginalized areas.

Rural / Urban Portfolio
Urban Portfolio

44.83%

Rural Portfolio

55.17%

Provincial Breakup

Balochistan

0.04%

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

0.6%

Sindh

30.40%
Punjab

68.96%

26
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Product-wise breakup
The end clients of PMIC are engaged in a variety of activities, from agriculture to livestock to various kinds of
small enterprises. These include, but are not limited to, small home-based industries, salons, transport
vehicles such as tuk-tuks, and other services like tailoring and handicrafts. PMIC endeavors to provide
financing for activities that would result in job creation.

Portfolio break-up by type of business
20.20%
0.30%

Renewable
Energy

Others

9.93%

Agriculture

23.42%

Livestock

46.15%

Enterprise/
Commerce/ Trading

27
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Institutional Building
PMIC recognizes that its financing solutions need to be complemented with support for institutional
building, particularly for our small to mid-tier borrowing institutions. During regular interactions with the
institutions, our team identifies gaps and provides feedback and solutions. PMIC encourages its borrowing
institutions to adopt best governance practices; over time; this has resulted in improved representation of
women at the BoD level and induction of professionals with relevant experience.

40%
35%

25%
35% Members have audit/finance/accounting background
25% Members have microfinance/business expertise
40% Others
Out of 110 BoD members in 16 borrowing institutions, 35% members have audit/finance/accounting
background and, 25% have microfinance/business expertise, remaining - others
PMIC’s efforts to build institutional capacity are also manifested in various other
indicators including operating expense ratios, which have come down across the board,
enhanced client retention rates and improved staff turnover ratios for its borrowing
institutions.

64%

Male
representation
at board level

Female
representation
at board level

36%

Female representation at
board level is 36% at end-2017
28
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Innovating to Grow - Product Verticals
As an apex institution, PMIC understands that creating socio-economic impact requires meaningful
contribution towards development of need based financial products and services, in addition to provision of
loans. Our Microfinance Plus Initiatives are driven to create this impact at the base of the pyramid.

Our Product Verticals include:
Renewable Energy

Digital Finance

Agri & Enterprise Value Chains

Graduation out of Poverty

Micro-Insurance

Enterprise Development

Education

Women

Pilots Initiated
Livestock Micro-insurance
Livestock micro-insurance product to protect the livelihoods and assets of
subsistence farmers in Sindh and Punjab with the aim to mitigate risk emanating
from the loss of livestock.
16,220 animals
7 districts through 7 PMIC Borrowing Institutions

Crop Micro-Insurance
Crop micro-insurance product to protect the subsistence farmers in Punjab from
the loss of crop due to changing weather patterns, market fluctuations, disease
outbreak, among others.
2,400 acres
2 districts through 1 PMIC Borrowing Institution

The Graduation Approach - Graduating Out of Poverty Model
Graduation of clients of social safety net and concessionary loan schemes into
microfinance, with the aim to bring them out of abject poverty and creation of
sustainable livelihoods.
Project being implemented in collaboration with PPAF
5,000 clients
6 districts through 6 PMIC Borrowing Institutions

Enterprise Development – Graduating microfinance clients to larger loans
Graduation of microfinance clients towards larger loans
Targeted towards high end micro and low end small enterprises aimed to enable
clients to expand their enterprises.
2,000 clients
4 districts through 3 PMIC Borrowing Institutions
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Scaling up Access to Energy through Microfinance
Microfinance based solar home systems for clients in off-grid areas of Pakistan
enabling access to clean energy through microfinance.
2,000 clients
3 districts through 2 PMIC Borrowing Institutions

Digital Finance
Linking smaller MFIs with digital finance players in the country to enable
digitization of microfinance operations.
68,184 clients
7 districts through 8 PMIC Borrowing Institutions

Agriculture Value Chain
PMIC and Sona Welfare Foundation (SWF), the corporate social responsibility
arm of Fauji Fertilizer Company (FFC) implemented an Agriculture Value Chain
in district Bahawalpur for 1,000 subsistence farmers.
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Fostering Partnerships

PMIC and Sona Welfare Foundation (SWF)
– Agriculture Value Chain in Bahawalpur

PMIC and KfW - Agreement to carry out a
feasibility study to gauge the potential for
microfinance based Solar Home Systems
for off-grid communities in Pakistan

PMIC and Insurance Companies
(Alfalah Insurance and United Insurance)
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PMIC and Digital Finance Players
(UBL Omni)

PMIC and Digital Finance Players
(Telenor Microfinance Bank)

PMIC and PPAF - Graduating
beneficiaries out of poverty
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Regulators- SBP, SECP
Government of Pakistan
Pakistan Microfinance Network
Shareholders (PPAF, KRN & KfW)
Development Agencies

Non-Bank Microfinance Institutions

Microfinance Banks

Commercial Banks

Partners Universe
Commercially oriented funds

Fintech and digital finance players

Corporate entities
Insurance companies
Academia
International lenders- Microfinance Investment Vehicles,
investors, etc.
Communities (microfinance clients)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited (“the
Company”) as at 31 December 2017 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive
income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control,
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating
the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:
(a)

in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

(b)

in our opinion-

(i)

the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and are in agreement with the books of account and
are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for the change as
indicated in the note 3 with which we concur;

(ii)

the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(iii)

the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company.

(c)

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in
equity for the year then ended; and

(d)

in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
-sd-

Date: 13 March 2018
Islamabad

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Riaz Pesnani
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2017

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Note

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Property and equipment

4

29,748,918

Intangible assets

5

854,222

-

Advances for capital expenditures

6

1,611,000

3,947,164

Financing - net

7

7,139,588,188

-

Long term advances and deposits

8

9,478,118

4,724,470

Deferred tax asset

9

46,043,760

-

7,227,324,206

11,499,238

2,827,604

CURRENT ASSETS
Advances, prepayments and other receivable

10

40,867,914

20,795,226

Markup accrued - receivable

11

176,059,138

4,935,004

Due from related parties

12

134,892,422

12,071,264

Lending to financial institutions

13

-

3,259,995,148

Short-term investments

14

950,000,000

2,350,000,000

Advance tax - net

15

-

749,330

7

4,241,451,812

-

Current portion of financing
Cash and bank balances

16

TOTAL ASSETS

66,748,590

256,781,849

5,610,019,876

5,905,327,821

12,837,344,082

5,916,827,059

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

17

Unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss)

5,884,222,000

5,884,222,000

85,150,985

(67,477,509)

5,969,372,985

5,816,744,491

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subordinated loan

18

6,680,638,230

-

Deferred liabilities

19

7,257,880

-

6,687,896,110

-

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

20

70,310,648

100,082,568

Provision for tax - net

15

1,325,323

-

Markup accrued - payable

21

89,077,246

-

Current portion of subordinated loan

18

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19,361,770

-

180,074,987

100,082,568

12,837,344,082

5,916,827,059

22

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Note

For the year ended
31 December 2017

For the period from
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Income - net

23

700,869,204

17,006,268

Finance cost

24

(148,184,213)
552,684,991

(2,800)
17,003,468

General provision

7.4

(114,960,000)
437,724,991

17,003,468

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

25
26

(256,128,541)
(15,070,880)
(271,199,421)

(100,402,617)
(100,402,617)

Other income

27

18,783,732

Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit / (loss) for the year / period

28

16,936,691

185,309,302

(66,462,458)

(33,629,859)

(1,015,051)

151,679,443

(67,477,509)

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2017

For the year ended
31 December 2017
Note
Profit / (loss) for the year / period

(Rupees)

For the period from
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016
(Rupees)

151,679,443

(67,477,509)

1,355,787
(406,736)
949,051

-

152,628,494

(67,477,509)

Other comprehensive income for the year / period
Items that will not be
reclassified to profit and loss account
Remeasurement of defined benefits liability
Related tax

19.2

Other comprehensive income - net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year / period

-

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Issued,
subscribed and
paid up share
capital

Unappropriated
profit

Total equity

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Balance at 10 August 2016

-

Total comprehensive income for the period - (loss)
Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period - net of tax

-

(67,477,509)
-

(67,477,509)
-

Total comprehensive income for the period - (loss)

-

(67,477,509)

(67,477,509)

-

-

Transactions with owners of the Company
Contribution
Issuance of share capital

5,884,222,000

-

5,884,222,000

Total transaction with owners of the Company

5,884,222,000

-

5,884,222,000

Balance at 31 December 2016

5,884,222,000

(67,477,509)

5,816,744,491

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax

-

151,679,443
949,051

151,679,443
949,051

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

152,628,494

152,628,494

85,150,985

5,969,372,985

Balance at 31 December 2017

5,884,222,000

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash flows from operating activities before
working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Financing - net
Long term advances and deposits
Advances, prepayments and other receivable
Lending to financial institutions
Short-term investments
Trade and other payables

For the year ended
31 December 2017

For the period from
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

29

(256,526,770)

(100,302,271)

7
8

(11,496,000,000)
(4,753,648)
(20,072,688)
3,259,995,148
1,400,000,000
(47,467,944)
(6,908,299,132)

(4,724,470)
(20,795,226)
(3,259,995,148)
(2,350,000,000)
100,082,568
(5,535,432,276)

(7,164,825,902)
(78,005,702)
(59,106,967)
(100,000)
32,631,374
174,045,843
224,610,252
12,069,480
62,800
(6,858,618,822)

(5,635,734,547)
(1,764,381)
(2,800)
16,936,691
(5,620,565,037)

(32,758,601)
(992,000)
2,336,164

(2,927,950)
(3,947,164)

(31,414,437)

(6,875,114)

17
18

6,700,000,000
6,700,000,000

5,884,222,000
5,884,222,000

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year / period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year / period

(190,033,259)
256,781,849
66,748,590

256,781,849
256,781,849

Cash used in operations
Taxes paid
Finance cost paid
Staff retirement benefit - gratuity paid
Receipt of profit on term deposit certificates
Receipt of markup on reverse repo transactions
Receipt of markup on financing
Receipts of profit on deposit accounts
Receipt of insurance claim on disposal of asset
Net cash used in operating activities

10
13
14
20

15

11 & 23
11 & 23
11 & 23
11 & 23

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Advances for capital expenditures paid

4
5
6

Net cash used in from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds against issuance of share capital
Receipt of subordinated loan
Net cash generated from financing activities

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 10
August 2016 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a public
unlisted company. The Company is licensed to carry out investment finance services as a
Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC”) under Section 282C of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (“the NBFC Rules”)
and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations 2008 (“the NBFC
Regulations”). The registered office of the Company is situated at 21st floor, Plot 55 C, Ufone Tower,
Jinnah Avenue (Blue Area), Islamabad, Pakistan.
The Company is setup jointly by Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (PPAF), Karandaaz Pakistan and
Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW), a German development company, to catalyze and lead the
next phase of growth in the microfinance sector of Pakistan. The purpose of the Company is to
provide a wide range of financial services, including wholesale funding to microfinance institutions
and microfinance companies to promote financial inclusion in Pakistan in order to alleviate poverty
and contribute to broad based development.
The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has assigned the Company a rating of ‘AA’ (long term
credit rating) and ‘A1+’ (short term credit rating) on 24 October 2017.

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed ordinance), the NBFC Rules, the
NBFC Regulations and the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(“SECP”). Wherever the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed ordinance),
the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by SECP differ with the requirements
of IFRS, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed ordinance), the NBFC
Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP, shall prevail.
The SECP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and International Accounting Standard (IAS) 40,
'Investment Property' through Circular No. 19 dated 13 August 2003 for Non-Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs) providing investment finance services, discounting services and housing
finance services, with the direction that such companies shall continue observing the State Bank of
Pakistan’s BSD Circular Letter No. 11 dated 11 September 2002, regarding the application of said IASs,
till further decision. In addition, the SECP has also deferred the application of International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' through SRO 411(1) / 2008 on such
Non-Banking Finance Companies as are engaged in investment finance services, discounting
services and housing finance services.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

2.2

Basis of measurement and preparation
During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) was enacted on 30 May, 2017, which replaced and
repealed the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (“the repealed Ordinance”). However, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”) through its Circular No. 23 of 2017 dated 04 October 2017
has advised that the companies whose financial year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall
prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984.
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Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for the
liability related to staff retirement gratuity which is stated at present values determined through
actuarial valuation.
2.3

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rupee or PKR), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
effects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both
current and future periods. Judgments made by management in application of the approved
accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in respective policy notes. The
areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

2.5

Estimate of useful life of property, plant and equipment – note 4;
Estimate of useful life of intangible assets – note 5;
Provisions – note 7;
Estimate of obligation in respect of employee benefit plans – note 19;
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets;
Classification of investments;
Contingencies – note 22; and
Provision for taxation – note 28.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
value, both for financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
Management has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 3 fair values.
Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the
management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows;
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized in different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement. The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
2.6

Standards issued but not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018:

■

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2
clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized
for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s
financial statements.

■

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ - effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or
from, investment property when, and only when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an
impact on Company’s financial statements.

■

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures’] (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that
a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture
separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity,
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment
entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in
subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

■

IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a
foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The
related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is
received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance
consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall
determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.
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■

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected
in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have
an impact on Company’s financial statements.

■

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18
‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The Company
is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in revenue
recognition policies on adoption of the standard.

■

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively). IFRS
9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a
new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general
hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Company is currently in the process of
analyzing the potential impact of changes required in classification and measurement of financial
instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the standard.

■

Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The
amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for
which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’).
The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS
28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

■

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments
to following approved accounting standards. The below amendments are effective from annual
period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely to have an impact on Company’s
financial statements.

■
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■

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify
the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that
meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint
operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

■

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently
with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

■

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

In addition, the Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on 30 May 2017 and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan vide its circular 23 of 2017 has clarified that the companies whose financial
year closes on or before 31 December 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with
the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Companies Act, 2017 applicable for
financial year beginning on 01 January 2018 requires certain additional disclosures. Management is in
the process of assessing the impact of such changes on the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements except for the change as indicated below.
Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ became effective during the year. The amendments
require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.
Accordingly, those disclosure have been included in the note 32 to these financial statements.
However, there was no change in the reported figures of profit and loss account or balance sheet.

3.1

Property and equipment and advances for capital expenditures

3.1.1

Owned
Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs
(if any), less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses except for capital
work in progress and advances for capital expenditures which are stated at cost less impairment loss,
if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and other directly attributable costs less refundable taxes.
Capital work in progress and advances for capital expenditures are transferred to the respective item
of property and equipment when available for intended use.
If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment. Gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment and is recognized in profit and loss
account.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to charge the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight line method, and is generally recognized in profit and loss account
at rates given in note 4 to these financial statements. Capital work in progress is not depreciated.
Depreciation on additions to property and equipment is charged on pro-rata basis from the month
in which property and equipment is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the
month in which property and equipment is disposed off / derecognized.
The Company reviews the residual values and useful lives of property and equipment on a regular
basis. Any change in such estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the
respective items of property and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge
and impairment.

3.2

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets with finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, if any.
45

Annual Report 2017

Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands (if any), is recognized in the profit and loss account as
incurred.
Amortization
Amortization of intangible assets, having finite useful life, is charged by applying straight line
method, so as to charge the cost of assets at amortization rate as mentioned in note 5 to the financial
statements. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.
3.3

Reverse repurchase agreements
Transactions of reverse repurchase of investment securities are entered into at contracted rates for
specified periods of time. Such investments are purchased with a corresponding commitment to
resell at a specified future date (reverse repo) and are not recognized in the balance sheet as
investment; amounts paid under these agreements are recorded as lendings. The difference
between purchase and resale price is accrued as return from lendings over the life of the reverse repo
agreement.

3.4

Employee benefits
The accounting policies for employee benefits are described below:

3.4.1

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

3.4.2 Defined contribution plan – Provident fund
The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for permanent employees.
Contributions to the fund are made monthly by the Company and employees at an agreed rate of
salary, the fund is managed by its Board of Trustee. The contributions of the Company are charged to
profit and loss account.
3.4.3 Defined benefit plan
The Company operates the following defined benefit plans:
Gratuity
The Company operates a defined benefit plan comprising an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all
eligible employees completing the minimum qualifying period of service as specified by the scheme.
Annual provisions to cover the obligations under the scheme are based on actuarial estimates and
are charged to profit and loss account. Actuarial valuations are carried out by a qualified actuarial
expert using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Cost Method. Net markup expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plan is recognized in profit and loss account.
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The present value of the obligation for gratuity depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
charge for the year include the discount rate, expected increase in eligible salary and mortality rate as
per note 19.3. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of obligations for
gratuity.
3.5

Financial instruments
The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: held-to-maturity
financial assets and loans and receivables.
The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities as other financial liabilities.

3.5.1

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities

3.5.1.1 Recognition and derecognition
The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables on the date when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or expire.
3.5.1.2 Non-derivative financial assets – Measurement
Held-to-maturity financial assets
These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective markup
method less impairment loss, if any.
Loans and receivables
These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective markup
method, as reduced by appropriate provision for impairment. Known impaired assets are written off,
while assets considered doubtful of recovery are fully provided for. The provision for these assets is
based on the Company’s assessment of the collectability of counterparty accounts. The Company
regularly reviews assets which remain outstanding past their applicable payment terms and
establishes provision and potential write offs by considering factors such as historical experience,
credit quality, age of these assets and current economic conditions that may affect a counterparty’s
ability to pay.
3.5.1.3 Non-derivative financial liabilities – Measurement
The Company initially recognizes non-derivative financial liabilities on the date that they are
originated or the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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These financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost
using the effective markup method. Non-derivative financial liabilities comprise markup bearing
borrowings including subordinated loan and trade and other payables.
3.5.1.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.6

Share capital and dividend
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Dividend distribution to
the shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which it is declared.

3.7

Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the liability.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

3.8

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except to
the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in
which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or refundable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or refundable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payable or refundable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met. The
charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, after taking into consideration available tax credits,
rebates and tax losses, if any.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognized for:
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■

temporary differences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

■

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

■

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for the
Company and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met.
The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.
3.9

Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistan Rupee at the rate of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and exchange differences, if
any, are recognized in profit and loss account.

3.10

Finance income and finance cost
Finance income comprises profit on deposit accounts. Markup income is recognized as it accrues in
profit or loss, using effective markup method.
Finance costs comprise markup expense on subordinated loan and bank charges. Borrowing costs
that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognized in profit and loss account using effective markup method.

3.11

Revenue recognition
Markup income / return on advances, financing and investments are recognized on a time
proportion basis using the effective markup method except the markup income / return on
non-performing advances, financing and investments which is recognized on a receipt basis in
accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations issued by the SECP. Return / markup on
rescheduled / restructured advances, financing and investments is recognized as permitted by the
aforementioned regulations, except where, in the opinion of the management, it would not be
prudent to do so.
Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss account in the period
in which they arise.
Service fee is taken to the profit and loss account when the services are provided and when right to
receive the fee is established.
Return on bank deposits are recognized on time proportionate basis.
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3.12

Finances
Finances comprise of installment finance facilities extended to microfinance institutions. These are
stated at cost less provision, if any, determined as per requirements of NBFC rules and regulations,
and the policy of the Company.

3.13

Impairment

3.13.1 Financial assets:
Financial assets not classified at fair value through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise and indication that a debtor will enter bankruptcy.
For an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment includes a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for impairment. Those found not to be
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics. In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested
by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective markup
rate. Losses are recognized in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account. When
the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.
An impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account, and is reversed if there has been a
favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
3.13.2 Non-financial assets:
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non-financial assets (other
than deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash generating units (CGUs).
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of any goodwill allocated to CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
3.14

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.15

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances used by the Company in the
management of its short-term commitments.
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4

6,920,544
6,920,544

Additions during the year
Transfers from CWIP
Disposal / write-off
Balance at 31 December 2017

-

20%

5,827,778
20%

Net book value:
-At 31 December 2017

Depreciation rates per annum

- At 31 December 2016

2,292,961

1,092,766
1,092,766

Charge for the year
On disposal / write-off
Balance at 31 December 2017

254,773
254,773

-

-

2,547,734
2,547,734

Vehicles

Balance at 10 August 2016
Charge for the period
Balance at 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation

-

Furniture and
fittings

Balance at 10 August 2016
Additions during the period
Balance at 31 December 2016

Cost

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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20%

211,108

982,514

165,238
168,816

3,578
3,578

936,644
1,151,330

214,686
214,686

Office
equipment

33.33%

1,659,858

5,449,637

1,861,732
(4,361)
1,954,139

96,768
96,768

5,725,650
(78,500)
7,403,776

1,756,626
1,756,626

(Rupees)

Computers

-

956,638

567,450

-

-

16,628,029
(17,017,217)
567,450

956,638
956,638

20%

-

14,628,578

2,388,639
2,388,639

-

17,017,217
17,017,217

-

Leasehold
Capital work in
improvements
proges
(Note 4.1)

2,827,604

29,748,918

5,763,148
(4,361)
5,859,133

100,346
100,346

32,758,601
(78,500)
35,608,051

2,927,950
2,927,950

Total
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31 December 2017
4.1

Capital work in progress

Note

(Rupees)

Leasehold improvements
5

31 December 2016
(Rupees)

567,450

956,638

992,000
992,000

-

137,778
137,778

-

854,222

-

33.33%

-

1,611,000
1,611,000

3,048,191
898,973
3,947,164

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost
Opening balance
Additions during the year / period
Closing balance
Amortization
Opening balance
Charge for the year / period
Closing balance
Net book value
Amortization rate per annum

6

ADVANCES FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Leasehold improvements
Advance for purchase of fixed assets

6.1
7

6.1

This represent advance given to supplier for the purchase of a vehicle.
FINANCING - Net
Financing to microfinance institutions (secured) - Markup bearing
31 December 2017

Note

Number of
loans
outstanding
26

Less:
General provision
Specific provision
Current maturity

7.1
7.2

26
-

Amount
outstanding
(Rupees)
11,496,000,000
(114,960,000)
(4,241,451,812)
7,139,588,188

31 December 2016

-

Amount
outstanding
(Rupees)
-

-

-

-

-

Number of
loans
outstanding

7.1 General provision is maintained at 1% (31December2016: Nil) of the outstanding balance of financing net
of specific provision.

53

54

7.4

7.3

7.2

Charge for the year / period

General provision against non-performing financing

Opening balance
Provision charged for the year / period
Closing balance

-

Specific

Particulars of provision against non-performing financing
General
(Rupees)
114,960,000
114,960,000

Total
114,960,000
114,960,000

31 December 2017

-

(Rupees)
-

-

Provisions
held

31 December 2017
Provision Amount
Provisions
rate
outstanding required

Other assets especially mentioned (OAEM)
Sub-standard
25%
Doubtful
50%
Loss
100%

Category of classification

Particulars of non-performing financing

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Specific
-

-

-

114,960,000

(Rupees)

Total
-

-

(Rupees)
-

For the period from
10 August 2016 to 31
December 2016

31 December 2016
General
(Rupees)
-

(Rupees)

Provisions required Provisions held

For the year ended
31 December 2017

Amount
outstanding

31 December 2016
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8

LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS
- Considered good

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Note

Advances to employees
Less: Current portion

8.1

18,619,076
(14,602,241)
4,016,835

Security deposits

8.2

5,461,283
9,478,118

4,724,470
4,724,470

8.1

These represent markup free advances against salaries extended to executives; repayable within a
period of maximum twenty four months from the month of disbursement, in accordance with the
human resource policy of the Company.

8.2

These represent security deposits against rented premises and employee fuel cards.
Recognized in

9

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Net balance at Profit and loss
Other compre- Net balance at
01 January account (note 28) hensive income 31 December
(Rupees)

31 December 2017
Taxable temporary differences
Property and equipment
Deductible temporary differences
Intangible assets
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Pre-incorporation expenses
Financing - net

-

(719,806)
(719,806)

-

(719,806)
(719,806)

-

5,730
2,584,100
10,092,472
34,488,000
47,170,302

(406,736)
(406,736)

5,730
2,177,364
10,092,472
34,488,000
46,763,566

-

46,450,496

(406,736)

46,043,760

31 December 2017
10

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLE - Considered good

Note

Advances
- Supplier
10.1
- Employees
10.2
- Current portion of long term advances to employees 8
Prepayments
- Rent
- Insurance
- Subscriptions
Other receivable

(Rupees)

31 December 2016
(Rupees)

3,142,000
52,000
14,602,241
17,796,241

2,421,096
40,000
2,461,096

10.3

18,894,293
1,865,298
503,582
21,263,173

18,334,130
18,334,130

10.4

1,808,500
40,867,914

20,795,226
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10.1

These represent advances for office supplies and advances to consultants / service providers.

10.2

These represent advances given to employees for official purposes.

10.3

This represent prepaid rent of Islamabad and Karachi offices.

10.4

This represents amount due from vehicle supplier, pursuant to cancellation of booking of the vehicle.

11

MARKUP ACCRUED - RECEIVABLE
Term deposit certificates
Profit on deposit accounts
Reverse repo transactions
Markup on financing

Note

11.1

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

4,054,653
71,288
171,933,197
176,059,138

3,348,712
1,586,292
4,935,004

11.1

This represents markup accrued on financing to microfinance institution as mentioned in note - 7 to
these financial statements.
31 December 2017
31 December 2016

12

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES - Unsecured
Service fee receivable
Grant income receivable

Note
12.1
12.2

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

128,296,177
6,596,245

12,071,264
-

134,892,422

12,071,264

12.1

This represents amount due from Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (an associated undertaking)
including sales tax of Rs. 17,696,024 (31 December 2016: Nil) in respect of certain monitoring services
provided by the Company under an agreement.

12.2

Grant income is recognised under the agreement with Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW), a
German development company (an associated undertaking) dated 30 November 2016 for
institutional capacity building of the Company including staff trainings ("technical assistance or TA")
incurred till 31 December 2018. Current year grant represents expenses claimed from Kfw pertaining
to consultancy services and trainings (local and international).

13

LENDING TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
These represent Market Treasury Bills (T-bills) and Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) purchased in
previous year under a resale agreement. During the current year, all the T-bills and PIBs have
matured.
31 December 2017
31 December 2016

14

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Note

Term deposit certificates with commercial banks 14.1
14.1

(Rupees)
950,000,000

PROVISION FOR TAX / ADVANCE TAX - Net

Note

Opening balance
Income tax charge for the year / period
28
Income tax paid / withheld during the year / period
Closing balance

56

2,350,000,000

These carry markup rates ranging from 6.65% to 7.50% (31 December 2016: 6.35% to 6.37%) per annum
having maturity period ranging from one month to six months (31 December 2016: one month) from
the date of investment.
31 December 2017

15

(Rupees)

(Rupees)
749,330
(80,080,355)
78,005,702
(1,325,323)

31 December 2016
(Rupees)
(1,015,051)
1,764,381
749,330
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16

Note

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at banks - Local currency
- Deposit accounts
- Current account

16.1

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)
22,097

(Rupees)
97,250

66,725,843
650
66,726,493

256,684,599
256,684,599

66,748,590

256,781,849

16.1

These represent deposit accounts with commercial banks carrying markup ranging from 3.75% to
5.40% (31 December 2016: 4.92%) per annum.
31 December 2016
31 December 2017

17

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
6,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs.1,000 each

17.1

17.2

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Ordinary
(Number of shares) (Number of shares) shares of
Rs.1,000
each
fully
5,884,222
5,884,222
paid in cash

Nature of
relationship

6,500,000,000

6,500,000,000

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

5,884,222,000

5,884,222,000

Number of
shares
31 December
2017

Number of
shares
31 December
2016

Pakistan Poverty
Alleviation Fund

Percentage of
shareholding
31 December
2017

Percentage of
shareholdin
31 December
2016

Associated
undertaking
Associated
Karandaaz Pakistan
undertaking
Kreditanstalt für
Associated
Wiederaufbau (KfW) undertaking

2,883,256

2,883,256

49.00%

49.00%

2,224,243

2,224,242

37.80%

37.80%

776,719

776,719

13.20%

13.20%

Directors
Total

4
5,884,222

5
5,884,222

0.00%
100.00%

0.00%
100.00%

Director

SUBORDINATED LOAN - Unsecured
Pakistan Poverty Alleviation fund - an associated undertaking

Current portion of subordinated loan

18.1

(Rupees)

The pattern of shareholding of the Company at respective reporting dates is as follows:
Shareholders

18

(Rupees)

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

6,700,000,000
(19,361,770)
6,680,638,230

-

This represents the outstanding balance of subordinated loan, under the agreement between
Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (an associated undertaking) and the Company dated 17 November
2016, currently carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR plus 1% per annum payable quarterly (31
December 2016: Nil). As per the agreement, the markup rate is to be revised downwards subject to
fulfillment of certain specified conditions including securing investment grade rating by the
Company. This condition has been met by the Company in October 2017 when PACRA assigned
investment grade rating to the Company as mentioned in note 1 to the financial statements. This
loan is repayable in quarterly installments commencing from October 2018.
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19

31 December 2017

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

(Rupees)
7,257,880

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

31 December 2016
(Rupees)
-

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees, details of which are as follows:
Movement in the liability recognised
in the balance sheet
Opening balance
Charge for the year / period recognised in profit and
loss account

Note

19.2

31 December 2016
(Rupees)

-

-

19.1

8,713,667

Payments made during the year / period
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income
19.2
Closing balance
Reconciliation of liability recognised in the
balance sheet

(100,000)

Present value of defined benefit obligation
19.1

31 December 2017
(Rupees)

Charge for the year / period recognised in profit
and loss account
Current service cost
Markup cost

-

(1,355,787)
7,257,880

-

7,257,880

-

8,719,042
(5,375)
8,713,667

-

(1,355,787)

-

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain on obligation

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out on 31 December 2017 using projected unit credit method.
19.3

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Expected increase in eligible salary
Duration (years)
Normal retirement age (years)
Effective salary increase date
Mortality rate

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

10.75%
10.75%
15.63
60
01 January 2018
SLIC 2001-2005

-

Assumption regarding future mortality has been based on State Life Corporation (SLIC 2001-2005).
Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Salary risk- (linked to inflation risk)
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since
the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other
macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.
Demographic risks
Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality.
This affect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.
Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal
probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits
of the beneficiary.
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20

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note

Creditors
Accrued expenses
Payable to employees
Payable to provident fund
Payable to related parties
Income tax deducted at source
Sales tax payable

20.1
20.2
20.3

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

4,004,074
37,165,294
542,217
10,544,638
47,282
311,119
17,696,024
70,310,648

29,626
7,665,024
89,710,176
2,677,742
100,082,568

20.1

These represent accruals made in respect of operational expenses of the Company including
variable compensations.

20.2

This represent payable to provident fund which was established during the year and became
operational subsequent to year.

20.3

Payable to related parties
Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund
Karandaaz Pakistan

47,282

70,901,623
18,808,553

47,282

89,710,176

20.3.1 These are unsecured, markup free and repayable
on demand.
21

MARKUP ACCRUED - PAYABLE
Markup on subordinated loan

21.1

This represents markup payable to Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (an associated undertaking)
in respect of subordinated loan under an agreement.

22

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1

Contingencies

21.1

89,077,246

-

There are no material contingencies at the reporting date (31 December 2016: Nil).

22.2

Commitments

Note

For capital expenditure
Related to purchase of services

22.2.1

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

378,300
378,300

13,356,528
413,538
13,770,066

22.2.1 This represents contractual commitments of Rs. 378,300 (31 December 2016: Rs. 13,356,526) to
supplier in respect of leasehold improvements.
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For the year ended

For the period from

31 December 2017

10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

23

INCOME - NET
Income from term deposit certificates
Markup on reverse repo transactions
Markup on financing
Service fee

Note
23.1
23.2
23.3

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

33,337,315
172,459,551
396,543,449
98,528,889

3,348,712
1,586,292
12,071,264

700,869,204

17,006,268

23.1

This represents markup on reverse repo transactions as mentioned in note - 13 to these financial
statements.

23.2

This represents markup on financing to microfinance institutions as mentioned in note - 7 to these
financial statements.

23.3

This is net of sales tax of Rs. 17,696,024 (for the period from 10 August 2016 to 31 December 2016: Nil)
and represents service fee income from Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (an associated
undertaking) in respect of certain monitoring services provided by the Company under an
agreement.
For the period from
For the year ended
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2017
31 December 2016
Note
FINANCE COST
(Rupees)
(Rupees)
Markup on subordinated loan
24.1
148,073,757
Bank charges
2,800
110,456
2,800
148,184,213

24

24.1

25

60

This represent markup on subordinated loan from Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund (PPAF) as
mentioned in note - 18 to these financial statements.
For the period from
For the year ended
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2017
31 December 2016
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Directors' fee
Utilities
Telecommunication and postage
Rent, rates, licenses and taxes
Printing and stationery
Traveling and conveyance
Repair and maintenance
Legal and professional fees
Advertisement and promotion
Trainings and workshops
Auditors' remuneration
Consultancy and outsourcing arrangements
Depreciation
Amortization
Insurance
Office supplies and meeting expenses
IT expenses
Membership and subscription charges
Miscellaneous
Pre-incorporation expenses

Note
25.1

25.2

25.3
25.4
4
5

(Rupees)
147,225,696
5,400,000
2,240,560
1,667,593
28,107,660
1,214,182
16,614,538
5,341,971
4,940,136
4,519,209
7,671,343
1,100,000
17,303,568
5,763,148
137,778
1,617,885
3,891,252
921,117
426,981
23,924
256,128,541

(Rupees)
16,981,281
1,050,000
30,469
159,972
9,912,690
243,825
1,808,677
199,707
3,192,904
826,221
859,338
500,000
6,451,626
100,346
18,932
1,973,493
23,850
56,069,286
100,402,617
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25.1

Salaries, wages and other benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 19,258,305 (for
the period from 10 August 2016 to 31 December 2016: Nil)

25.2

These represent staff business traveling and costs of operational monitoring field visits to the
borrowers.
For the period from
For the year ended
31 December 2017

10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

25.3

Auditors' remuneration

Note

(Rupees)
700,000
350,000
50,000
1,100,000

Audit fee
Certification fee
Out of pocket expenses

(Rupees)
500,000
500,000

25.4

These represent consultancies for capacity building, strategy formulation and other services.

26

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
These represent specific grants extended to financees of the Company as part of its Microfinance
Plus (MF Plus) initiative.
For the year ended

For the period from

31 December 2017

10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

27

OTHER INCOME

Note

Income from financial assets
Profit on deposit accounts
Income from non-financial assets
Grant income (KfW)
Others

27.1

27.1

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

12,140,768

16,936,691

6,596,245
46,719
18,783,732

16,936,691

Grant income is recognised under the agreement with Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW), a
German development company (an associated undertaking) dated 30 November 2016 for
institutional capacity building of the Company including staff trainings ("technical assistance or TA")
incurred till 31 December 2018. Current year grant represents expenses claimed from Kfw pertaining
to consultancy services and trainings (local and international).
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For the year ended

For the period from

31 December 2017

10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

28

Taxation

Note

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Provision for tax
Current tax for the year / period
Deferred tax

15

80,080,355

9

(46,450,496)

-

33,629,859

1,015,051

For the year ended

For the period from

31 December 2017

1,015,051

10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

28.1

Reconciliation between tax on accounting profit /
(loss) and tax expense

Note

Accounting profit / (loss) for the year / period before tax
Applicable tax rate
Tax charge
Tax effect of minimum tax charged
Tax effect of permanent differences
Tax effect of exempt income
Effect of deferred tax asset not previously recognized
Deferred tax asset not recognized

29

(Rupees)

185,309,302

(66,462,458)

30%

31%

55,592,791
4,029
(1,978,874)
(19,988,087)
33,629,859

(20,603,362)
1,015,051
615,275
-

185,309,302

(66,462,458)
100,346
(3,348,712)
(1,586,292)
(12,071,264)
2,800
(16,936,691)
(100,302,271)

19,988,087
1,015,051

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
4
Depreciation
5
Amortization
General provision
7.4
Provision for staff retirement benefit - gratuity 19.1
23
Income from term deposit certificates
23
Markup on reverse repo transactions
23
Markup on financing
23
Service fee
24
Finance cost
26
Loss on disposal of asset
27
Profit on deposit accounts
27
Grant income (KfW)
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(Rupees)

5,763,148
137,778
114,960,000
8,713,667
(33,337,315)
(172,459,551)
(396,543,449)
(98,528,889)
148,184,213
11,339
(12,140,768)
(6,596,245)
(256,526,770)
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30

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS
For the year ended
31 December 2017
(Rupees)

Note
Salaries and other
benefits
Contribution to
provident fund
Gratuity
Meeting fee
30.3

For the period from
10 August 2016 to 31 December 2016
(Rupees)

Chief Executive

Directors

26,463,500

-

8,029,032

-

2,126,923
1,900,000
30,490,423

5,400,000
5,400,000

8,029,032

1,050,000
1,050,000

1

2

1

2

Number of persons

Chief Executive

Directors

30.1

In addition to the above, Chief Executive is provided with other perquisites as per the Company's
policy.

30.2

The Chief Executive of the Company resigned during the year in August 2017 and new Chief Executive
was appointed by the Board effective from the same date.

30.3

Remuneration of directors represents the meeting fee of two independent directors. No other
directors were paid any remuneration during the year.

31

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors as well as their close family members,
companies with common directorship, executives, key management personnel and major
shareholders. Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 8.1, 10.2, 12, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 to these
financial statements. Transactions with related parties are as follows:
For the year ended

Transactions with associated undertakings
Issue of share capital
Service fee charged during the year / period
Grant income recognised during the year / period
Subordinated loan received during the year / period
Markup on subordinated loan charged during the year / period

31 December 2017

For the period from
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)
-

5,884,222,000

116,224,913

12,071,264

6,596,245

-

6,700,000,000

-

148,073,757

-

58,996,511

-

89,920,403

-

257,509

-

Pre incorporation expenses incurred on behalf of the Company

-

56,069,286

Post incorporation expenses incurred on behalf of the Company

-

23,618,444

Employee contribution payable to provident fund

5,272,319

-

Employer contribution payable to provident fund

5,272,319

-

89,264,578

6,248,387

Markup on subordinated loan paid during the year / period
Payments made to associated undertakings
Payments made on behalf of the Company by
associated undertakings

Transactions with other related parties

Transactions with key management personnel
Remuneration and allowance
including staff retirement benefits

31.1
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31.1

For the year ended
31 December 2017

For the period from
10 August 2016 to
31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Compensation to key management personnel
Salaries and other benefits
Contribution to provident fund
Gratuity

79,321,757
4,812,186
5,130,635
89,264,578

6,248,387
6,248,387

29

3

Number of persons
31.1.1

Key management personnel includes employees, other than the chief executive and directors, whose
basic salary exceeds five hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

31.1.2

Remuneration of Chief Executive is disclosed in note 30.

32

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Liabilities
Subordinated
loan

Reserves
Unappropriated
profit

Total

Rupees
-

(67,477,509)

(67,477,509)

Changes from financing cashflows
Proceeds from subordinated loan
Total changes from financing cash flows

6,700,000,000
6,700,000,000

-

6,700,000,000
6,700,000,000

Total equity-related other changes
Balance at 31 December 2017

6,700,000,000

152,628,494
85,150,985

152,628,494
6,785,150,985

Balance at 01 January 2017

64

FAIR VALUES

A

7
8
10.4
11
12
14
16

33.2

Financing - net
Long term advances and deposits
Advances, prepayments and other receivable
Markup accrued - receivable
Due from related parties
Short-term investments
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
18
20 & 33.3
21

33.2

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Subordinated loan
Trade and other payables
Markup accrued - payable

Note

31 December 2017

On-balance sheet financial instruments

-

11,381,040,000
24,080,359
1,808,500
176,059,138
134,892,422
950,000,000
66,748,590
12,734,629,009

Loans
and
receivables

-

6,700,000,000
15,138,211
89,077,246
6,804,215,457

Other
financial
liabilities

6,700,000,000
15,138,211
89,077,246
6,804,215,457

11,381,040,000
24,080,359
1,808,500
176,059,138
134,892,422
950,000,000
66,748,590
12,734,629,009

(Rupees)

Total

-

-

Level 1

31 December 2017

-

-

Level 2

-

-

Level 3

Fair value

-

-

Total

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

33.1 Classifications and fair values

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
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65

66
33.2

Financial assets not measured at fair value
-

-

-

Level 1

-

-

Level 2

-

-

Level 3

-

-

Total

It excludes accrued expenses, income tax deducted at source and sales tax payable.

89,739,802
89,739,802

4,724,470
4,935,004
12,071,264
3,259,995,148
2,350,000,000
256,781,849
5,888,507,735

(Rupees)

Total

33.3

89,739,802
89,739,802

Other
financial
liabilities

Fair value

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, because their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value.

-

4,724,470
4,935,004
12,071,264
3,259,995,148
2,350,000,000
256,781,849
5,888,507,735

Loans
and
receivables

31 December 2017

33.2

20 & 33.3

33.2

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Trade and other payables

14
16

Long term advances and deposits
Markup accrued - receivable
Due from related parties
Lending to financial institutions
Short-term investments
Cash and bank balances

8
11
12

Note

31 December 2017

On-balance sheet financial instruments
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33.4

Measurement of fair values
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of consideration paid or
received, net of transaction costs as appropriate. The financial assets and liabilities of the Company
approximate their carrying values. A number of Company's accounting policies and disclosures
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair
values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following
methods.

i.

Non - derivative financial assets
The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of markup at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for
disclosure purposes.

ii.

Non - derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of
future principal and markup cash flows, discounted at the market rate of markup at the reporting
date.

B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has exposure to following risk from its use of financial instruments.
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company’s risk management policies.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks being
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training, management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company.

33.5

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. To manage credit risk the Company maintains procedures
covering the application for credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and
monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of these processes the financial viability of all
counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed.
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i.

Concentration of credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Note

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Financing - net

7

11,381,040,000

-

Long term advances and deposits

8

24,080,359

4,724,470

1,808,500

-

Advances, prepayments and other receivable

10.4

Markup accrued - receivable

11

176,059,138

4,935,004

Due from related parties

12

134,892,422

12,071,264

Lending to financial institutions

13

-

3,259,995,148

Short-term investments

14

950,000,000

2,350,000,000

Cash at bank

16

66,726,493

256,684,599

12,734,606,912

5,888,410,485

Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at
the reporting date by type of counter party is as follows:

Related parties
Banks and financial institutions
Others

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

134,892,422

12,071,264

12,573,825,631

5,871,614,751

25,888,859

4,724,470

12,734,606,912

5,888,410,485

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect
of financial assets. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment
statistics for similar financial assets.
ii-

Impairment losses
The Company records general provision against financing at 1% of outstanding balance of financing,
net of specific provision.
The movement in provision in respect of financing during the year was as follows:

Note
Opening balance
Provision made during the year
Closing balance

7.4

For the year ended

For the period from

31 December 2017

10 August 2016 to

(Rupees)

31 December 2016
(Rupees)
-

-

(114,960,000)

-

(114,960,000)

-

The provision account in respect of financing are used to record impairment losses unless the Company is
satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amount considered irrevocable is
written off against the financial asset directly.
Based on past experience, the management believes that except as already provided for in these financial
statements, no further impairment is required to be recognized against any financial assets of the Company.
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iii.

Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of the Company's financial assets have been assessed below by reference to
external credit rating of counterparties determined by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
(PACRA) and JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR - VIS).
An analysis of the credit quality of financial assets is as follows:

Ratings

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Financing - net
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties without credit rating

BBB+

Long term advances and deposits
Counterparties without credit rating
Advances, prepayments and other receivable
Counterparties without credit rating

3,400,000,000
8,096,000,000
11,496,000,000

-

24,080,359

4,724,470

1,808,500

-

Markup accrued - receivable
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties without credit rating

AAA
A+
A1+
A-3

510,136
3,544,517
71,288
53,345,753
118,587,444
176,059,138

4,935,004
4,935,004

Due from related parties
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties without credit rating

AA+

6,596,245
128,296,177
134,892,422

12,071,264
12,071,264

Lending to financial institutions
Counterparties with credit rating

A1+

-

3,259,995,148

Short-term investments
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties with credit rating

A
AA+

250,000,000
700,000,000
950,000,000

2,350,000,000
2,350,000,000

Cash at bank
Counterparties with credit rating
Counterparties with credit rating

A1+
A1

64,865,568
1,860,925
66,726,493

256,684,599
256,684,599
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33.6

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, prudent fund management practices and the ability to close out market positions due to
dynamic nature of the business. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.
Exposure to liquidity risk
There were no defaults on loans payable during the year.

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the contractual amounts is as
follows:
Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Maturity up to
one year

Maturity after Maturity after
one year and
five years
upto five years

(Rupees)
31 December 2017
Subordinated loan

6,700,000,000

9,724,466,995

472,995,772

5,216,874,866

4,034,596,357
-

15,138,211

15,138,211

15,138,211

-

89,077,246

89,077,246

-

-

6,804,215,457

9,828,682,452

488,133,983

5,216,874,866

31 December 2016

89,739,802

89,739,802

89,739,802

-

-

Trade and other payables

89,739,802

89,739,802

89,739,802

-

-

Trade and other payables
Markup accrued - payable

4,034,596,357

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly
earlier or at significantly different amounts.
The contractual cash flows relating to subordinated loan have been determined on the basis of
expected mark up rates. The mark up rates have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial
statements.
33.7

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes
in market markup rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities
and liquidity in the market.

33.7.1 Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has neither dealt in foreign currency
transactions during the year nor has any balances receivables / payable in foreign currency at the
reporting date; hence at present the Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk.

70

Annual Report 2017

Pakistan Microfinance Investment Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

33.7.2 Markup rate risk
The markup rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in the market markup rates. The Company has financing and subordinated loan in Pakistan Rupees
at variable rates. The financing and subordinated loan has variable rate pricing that is dependent on
the Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR).
i.

Exposure to markup rate risk
At the reporting date the markup rate profile of the Company's markup bearing financial
instruments was as follows:
31 December 2017

31 December 2016

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Effective rate %

Effective rate %

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

3.75 - 7.5

4.2 - 6.37

1,016,726,493

5,866,679,747

11,496,000,000

-

(6,700,000,000)

-

4,796,000,000

-

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

ii.

KIBOR +
1 to 3.5

Nil

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in markup rates at the reporting date would not effect profit or loss
account.

iii.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in markup rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased)
markup income by Rs. 42.262 million and increased / (decreased) markup expense by Rs. 20.709
million (for the period from 10 August 2016 to 31 December 2016: Nil). This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for previous period.

33.7.3 Other market price risk
The primary goal of the Company’s investment strategy is to maximize investment returns on surplus
funds. The Company adopts a policy of ensuring to minimize its price risk by investing in securities
having sound market performance.
33.7.4 Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movement in prices of equity investments. The
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in
equity shares at the reporting date.
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33.8

Capital risk management
The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
business. The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by
monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions to maximize the return. In order to maintain or adjust the optimal capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, appropriation of amounts to
capital reserves or / and issue new shares.
Capital requirements applicable to the Company are set and regulated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP"). These requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing its capital structure
against the required level on a regular basis at the reporting date, the minimum equity requirement
as per the NBFC Regulations for the non deposit taking NBFC is Rs. 100 million (31 December 2016:
100 million). As at 31 December 2017, the Company's total equity is Rs. 5,943 million (31 December 2016:
5,817 million).

34

EMPLOYEES' PROVIDENT FUND

34.1

At the reporting date, the contributions to provident fund have been placed in a bank account
designated for this purpose.

35

36
36.1

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Number of employees at year / period end

30

23

Average number of employees

15

6

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

GENERAL
Following comparatives have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year:

Reclassified from

Note

Amount
(Rupees)

Trade and other payables - Payable to related parties

12

12,071,264

20

(12,071,264)

Reclassified to
Due from related parties
36.2

Current year financial statements of the Company represent activities for the year ended 31
December 2017, whereas comparative figures represent activities for the period from 10 August 2016
to 31 December 2016, therefore comparatives are not comparable.

36.3

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on 13 March 2018

-sd_____________________________

-sd_______________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR
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